
Page # 1 of 1 Posted: May 29, 2015 
 

REV 10/30/2014 
PLEASE NOTE:  IN ACCORDANCE WITH FLORIDA STATUES 286.0105:  ANY PERSON WHO DESIRES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION AT THIS MEETING WILL NEED A RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS AND FOR 
THIS PURPOSE MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE WHICH INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS BASED, WHICH SUCH 
WRITTEN RECORD IS NOT PROVIDED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN. 
 

PLEASE NOTE:  IN ACCORDANCE WITH FLORIDA STATUTE 286.26: PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES NEEDING ASSISTANCE TO PARTICIPATE IN ANY OF THESE PROCEEDINGS SHOULD CONTACT 
KATHY RATHEL, 300 WEST PLANT STREET, WINTER GARDEN, FL 34787, (407) 656-4111, EXT 5149 - 48 HOURS IN ADVANCE OF THE MEETING. 

 

 
 
 
 
To: Eric Weiss – Chairman 

Will Hawthorne – Vice Chairman 
Mark DeFuso 
Heather Gantt 
Gerald Jowers 
David Kassander 
Mark Maciel 
 

Copy to: Mike Bollhoefer 
Dan Langley 
Kurt Ardaman 
Ed Williams 
Stephen Pash 
Kelly Carson 
Nadine Avola 
Jessica Frye 

 

RE: Agenda – June 1, 2015 at 6:30 PM 
Commission Chambers, City Hall 

 300 West Plant Street, Winter Garden 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM THE MAY 4, 2015 MEETING  
 

ANNEXATION / FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT / REZONING (PUBLIC HEARING) 
 

4. 360 W. Story Road (Jesus Manuel Sanchez & Yoselina Aguirre Palacios) AZFA 
Parcel ID #22-22-27-1084-02-040   TABLED TO JULY 6, 2015 P&Z MEETING 

 

5. 161 S. Boyd Street (Kelso Investments LLC) REZONING 
Parcel ID #23-22-27-2888-08-070 

 

PRELIMINARY PLAT / FINAL PLAT / LOT SPLIT 
 

6. 505 & 807 Avalon Road, 14966 Siplin Road (Mattamy Orlando, LLC) PRELIMINARY PLAT 
Parcel ID #27-22-27-0000-00-068, 27-22-27-0000-00-069 & 34-22-27-0000-00-003 

 

SPECIAL EXCEPTION PERMIT (PUBLIC HEARING) 
 

7. 3107 Daniels Road, Suite 102 (DDR Winter Garden LLC/Verizon Wireless) 
Parcel ID #35-22-27-9398-03-010 

 

8. 1450 Daniels Road (Harvest of Hope Garden Greenhouse) 
Parcel ID #26-22-27-0000-00-014 

 

9. 12801 W. Colonial Drive (Sigma Delta Investments / Wild Hogs Scooters)  
Parcel ID #12-22-27-6496-32-016    TABLED TO JULY 6, 2015 P&Z MEETING 

 

VARIANCE (PUBLIC HEARING) 
 

10. 15344 Johns Lake Pointe Blvd (Charles & Pamela Wraith 2004 Trust) 
Parcel ID #28-22-27-4025-02-880 

 

11. 628 Dharma Circle (David Nguyen) 
Parcel ID #26-22-27-1988-00-100 

 

ADJOURN to the next regular Planning and Zoning Board meeting on Monday, July 6, 2015 at 6:30 
p.m. in City Hall Commission Chambers, 300 W. Plant Street, 1st floor. 

For More Information, Contact: 
Kathy Rathel 

Customer Service Technician 
City of Winter Garden  
300 West Plant Street 

Winter Garden, FL 34787 
407.656.4111 ext. 5149 

krathel@cwgdn.com 

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD AGENDA  

mailto:krathel@


 

 

MAY 4, 2015 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 1 
 

 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

MAY 4, 2015 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE / INVOCATION 

Chairman Eric Weiss called the meeting of the City of Winter Garden Planning and Zoning 
Board to order at 6:33 p.m. in the City Hall Commission Chambers.  A moment of silence 
was followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

2. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
The roll was called and a quorum was declared present. 

MEMBERS PRESENT: 

Chairman Eric Weiss, Vice-Chairman Will Hawthorne, and Board Members: Mark DeFuso 
(arrived at 6:39 pm), David Kassander, and Mark Maciel 

MEMBERS ABSENT: 
Heather Gantt (excused) and Gerald Jowers (unexcused) 

STAFF PRESENT: 
City Attorney Kurt Ardaman, Community Development Director Ed Williams, Community 
Development Manager Steve Pash, Planner II Kelly Carson, Planner I Jessica Frye, and 
recording secretary Kathleen Rathel 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
Motion by David Kassander to approve the regular meeting minutes of April 6, 
2015 and seconded by Mark Maciel.  Motion carried unanimously 4 - 0. 

 
ANNEXATION / FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT / REZONING (PUBLIC HEARING) 
4. 50 E. Palmetto Street – Rafael Garcia (ANNEXATION, FLU and ZONING) 

Community Development Manager Steve Pash presented a voluntary request for Annexation, 
Future Land Use designation and Zoning for the 0.23+/- acre property located at 50 E. 
Palmetto Street.  The applicant has requested Annexation into the City, Amendment to the 
Future Land Use Map of the City’s Comprehensive Plan to designate the property as Low 
Density Residential, and Zoning of R-2.  Staff has reviewed the application and recommends 
approval of Ordinances 15-37, 15-38 and 15-39. 

Motion by Mark Maciel to recommend approval of Ordinances 15-37, 15-38, and 
15-39 with Staff Recommendations (as provided in the agenda packet) and 
seconded by Will Hawthorne.  Motion carried unanimously 4 - 0. 

 

DR
AF
T



 

MAY 4, 2015 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 2 
 

5. 1050 Vineland Road – Jose M. Rodriguez (ANNEXATION, FLU and ZONING) 
Community Development Manager Pash presented a voluntary request for Annexation, 
Future Land Use designation and Zoning for the 0.23+/- acre property located at 1050 
Vineland Road.  The applicant has requested Annexation into the City, Amendment to the 
Future Land Use Map of the City’s Comprehensive Plan to designate the property as 
Residential Neighborhood Commercial, and Zoning of R-NC.  Staff has reviewed the 
application and recommends approval of Ordinances 15-34, 15-35 and 15-36. 

Board Member Kassander asked what the most intense use in the R-NC zone would be and 
the limitations.  Mr. Pash answered with small office use for Attorney’s or Insurance for 
example as the site is limited for parking and landscaping and would have to have a Special 
Exception for office use. 

Board Member Weiss asked if anything was proposed for the outskirts of the Traditional 
Downtown area just for offices.  Mr. Pash replied yes, down the main street. 

Motion by David Kassander to recommend approval of Ordinances 15-34, 15-35, & 
15-36 with Staff Recommendations (as provided in the agenda packet) and 
seconded by Mark Maciel.  Motion carried unanimously 4 - 0. 

 
6. 360 W. Story Road – Jesus Manuel Sanchez and Yoselina Aguirre Palacios 

(ANNEXATION, FLU and ZONING) 
This project was tabled to the June 1, 2015 Planning & Zoning meeting. 

 
 (Board Member Mark DeFuso arrived at 6:39 p.m.) 
 
7. 698 Tildenville School Road – Mahindranauth Seearam (ANNEXATION, FLU and 

ZONING) 
Planner II Kelly Carson presented a voluntary request for Annexation, Future Land Use 
designation and Zoning for the 0.979+/- acre vacant property located at 698 Tildenville 
School Road.  The applicant has requested Annexation into the City, Amendment to the 
Future Land Use Map of the City’s Comprehensive Plan to designate the property as Low 
Density Residential, and Zoning of R-1.  Staff has reviewed the application and recommends 
approval of Ordinances 15-46, 15-47 and 15-48. 

Board Member Weiss asked if all the surrounding properties of an intersection are either 
County or City, does it deem the intersection/roadway County or City jurisdiction.  Attorney 
Ardaman replied there is an agreement between the City and the County in respect to what 
controls the jurisdiction of the right-of-way.  Community Development Director Williams 
explained that, generally speaking, if the City has 50% of the land on either side of the road 
between two main intersections then it becomes a City road.  Exceptions are certain main 
roads, because of geometry or need for repair, when it does not apply. 

Motion by Will Hawthorne to recommend approval of Ordinances 15-46, 15-47, 
and 15-48 with Staff Recommendations (as provided in the agenda packet) and 
seconded by Mark Maciel.  Motion carried unanimously 5 - 0. 
 
 

 

DR
AF
T



 

MAY 4, 2015 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 3 
 

8. 844 E. Crown Point Road – West Orlando Baptist Church (ANNEXATION, FLU and 
ZONING) 
Planner II Carson presented a voluntary request for Annexation, Future Land Use designation 
and Zoning for the 0.868+/- property located at 844 E. Crown Point Road.  The property was 
recently purchased by West Orlando Baptist Church and contains a single family residence.  
The applicant has requested Annexation into the City, Amendment to the Future Land Use 
Map of the City’s Comprehensive Plan to designate the property as Low Density Residential, 
and Zoning of R-1.  The Church has no immediate plans to develop the property but if they 
do in the future they will be required to go through the Site Plan Approval process requiring 
them to adhere to certain development restrictions.  Staff has reviewed the application and 
recommends approval of Ordinances 15-43, 15-44 and 15-45. 

Motion by Mark DeFuso to recommend approval of Ordinances 15-43, 15-44, and 
15-45 with Staff Recommendations (as provided in the agenda packet) and 
seconded by Eric Weiss.  Motion carried unanimously 5 - 0. 

 
9. 423 Daniels Road – Daniels Professional Park, LLC (REZONING) 

Community Development Manager Pash presented a request for Rezoning of the property 
located at 423 Daniels Road.  The subject property consists of a 1.93+/- acre lot located at the 
northeast corner of Daniels Road and Roper Road.  The R-1 zoned property is currently 
vacant and the applicant is requesting to rezone the property to PCD Planned Commercial 
Development to develop a 17,250 square foot professional office complex, which is 
consistent with the existing Residential Neighborhood Commercial Future Land Use 
designation.  A community meeting regarding the rezoning was held April 16, 2015.  The 
main concerns were drainage, uses and lighting.  Staff explained the drainage issue would be 
addressed through Site Plan review and the lighting was a City Code requirement to have 
‘dark skies’.  The only objection to a use was that there would not be an MRI Center.  The 
applicant agreed and is now specified in the PCD Ordinance that no MRI Centers were 
allowed.  Staff has reviewed the application and recommends approval of Ordinance 15-28. 

General discussion ensued regarding lighting, hours, signage, outdoor activities, and parking. 

Motion by David Kassander to recommend approval of Ordinance 15-28 with Staff 
Recommendations (as provided in the agenda packet) and seconded by Eric Weiss.  
Motion carried unanimously 5 - 0. 

 
10. Marsh Road – City of Winter Garden (REZONING) 

Community Development Manager Pash presented a request for Rezoning for the property 
located on the south side of Marsh Road west of Avalon Road.  The subject property consists 
of a 44.83+/- acre lot owned by the City which was included in the original PUD at that 
intersection.  The PUD zoned property is currently vacant.  The City is requesting to remove 
the property from the PUD and rezone to C-2 Arterial Commercial District which is 
consistent with the existing Commercial Future Land Use designation as well as the character 
of the surrounding area.  Staff has reviewed the application and recommends approval of 
Ordinance 15-42. 

Motion by Eric Weiss to recommend approval of the Rezoning of Marsh Road, 
Ordinance 15-42, with Staff Recommendations (as provided in the agenda packet) 
and seconded by Will Hawthorne.  Motion carried unanimously 5 - 0. 

 

DR
AF
T



 

MAY 4, 2015 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 4 
 

SPECIAL EXCEPTION (PUBLIC HEARING) 
11. 12801 W. Colonial Drive – Sigma Delta Investments/Wild Hogs Scooters 

Community Development Manager Pash presented a request for a Special Exception Permit 
to allow for the property located at 12801 West Colonial Drive to be used for Automobile 
Sales and Services to operate a business for scooter sales and service.  The business currently 
operates on Dillard Street but is interested in moving for the visibility.  The applicant is 
requesting special exception to allow a portion of the building to be used as a sales facility to 
sell scooters and the remainder of the building to be used for automobile services to work on 
scooters.  The C-2 Zoning district allows vehicle sales and services through special exception 
if it meets the special exception requirements.  Staff has reviewed the application and 
recommends approval providing the existing gas station canopy be removed and all other 
conditions in the Staff Report are met. 

Board Member Weiss asked if there had been displays allowed at that location in the past.  
Mr. Pash explained that the City requires a better site plan showing the number and location 
for the scooter display. 

Board Member Kassander asked if this site was to be for scooters only or would there be 
automobiles.  Mr. Pash stated there would be no automobiles and is limited to scooters only. 

Andrew Freedman, owner of Wild Hogs Scooters, was present and addressed the Board.  He 
stated his business consists primarily of scooters from 50cc up to 400cc, dirt bikes, and 4-
wheelers but needs more space and a better way to display his items.  Board Member DeFuso 
questioned the larger size of motorcycles to be sold as there could be a noise issue. 

(Mark Maciel recused himself from voting on this item) 

Andrew Freedman stated his landlord would not pay to remove the existing canopy and he 
did not have the budget to remove the canopy at this time.  A discussion ensued regarding 
removing the canopy, which the City requires to help with the aesthetics of Highway 50, and 
if the City would allow the applicant additional time to remove the canopy if it was painted. 

Board Member Weiss stated he approves the business at this location but would first like to 
see a site plan showing landscaping, parking spaces, the scooter display, and a time frame for 
the canopy removal. 

Motion by Will Hawthorne to table the Special Exception for 12801 W. Colonial 
Drive until the June 1, 2015 Planning & Zoning meeting at 6:30 pm and seconded 
by David Kassander.  Motion carried 4 – 0 with Mark Maciel abstaining. 

 
12. 1030 Vineland Road – Graham Family Law Firm, PA 

Planner II Carson presented a request for a Special Exception Permit for the property located 
at 1030 Vineland Road to be used as a professional office for a law firm.  The property is 
zoned R-NC which allows professional office uses through special exception if they meet the 
special exception requirements.  Staff has reviewed the application and recommends 
approval subject to the conditions listed in the Staff Report. 

Motion by David Kassander to recommend approval of the Special Exception for 
1030 Vineland Road with Staff Recommendations (as provided in the agenda 
packet) and seconded by Will Hawthorne.  Motion carried unanimously 5 – 0. 

 

DR
AF
T



 

MAY 4, 2015 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 5 
 

13. 1309 Winter Garden Vineland Road – West Orange Outparcels/Bright Start Pediatrics 
Planner II Carson presented a request for a Special Exception Permit to allow for the 
property located at 1309 Winter Garden Vineland Road to be used as a daycare for medically 
fragile children who receive special permission from a doctor to attend.  The vacant 
property’s PCD Zoning allows a daycare use through special exception if the applicant meets 
the special exception requirements.  A Fair Share Agreement was a condition of approval to 
develop the property when purchased.  Staff has reviewed the application and recommends 
approval subject to the conditions listed in the Staff Report. 

Board Member DeFuso inquired how many kids would be there, transportation for the kids, 
traffic issues and traffic impact.  Ms. Carson stated because these are medically fragile 
children a special transport van would be used for the majority of them, approximately 80%, 
being dropped off and picked up which helps with the parking and traffic issues and the vans 
used would be parked offsite.  The maximum number of children would be 36.  Board 
Member Kassander asked if the applicant would be able to change to a regular daycare.  Ms. 
Carson stated any change would have to be brought back before the Board. 

Linda Brown, owner of BrightStart Pediatrics, addressed the Board stating she currently 
owns two BrightStart Pediatrics, one in south Orlando and one in Sanford, and has been in 
business for 12 years.  She chose the Winter Garden area as it was centralized between the 
other two locations, had access to major roads, and was in close proximity to medical 
facilities.  The hours of operation would be from 7:00 am to 8:00 or 9:00 pm to accommodate 
the families working schedules but children could not stay more than 12 hours per day. 

Motion by Eric Weiss to recommend approval of the Special Exception for 1309 
Winter Garden Vineland Road for Bright Start Pediatrics with Staff 
Recommendations (as provided in the agenda packet) and seconded by Mark 
Maciel.  Motion carried unanimously 5 – 0. 

 
14. 1450 Daniels Road – Church of Christ of West Orange/Creative Signs 

Planner II Carson presented a request for a Special Exception Permit to allow a sign that 
exceeds the allowable size and copy area for the property located at 1450 Daniels Road.  The 
applicant is requesting a Special Exception Permit to allow an electronic message center to 
be installed within the structural frame of an existing changeable letter sign which exceeds 
the allowable size and copy area permitted within an R-2 Residential Zoning District.   The 
R-2 Zoning district allows electronic message centers through Special Exception if the 
applicant meets the Special Exception requirements.  Staff has reviewed the application and 
recommends approval subject to the conditions listed in the Staff Report. 

Richard Farnsworth, resident, wanted to know if the new sign would impede views of traffic 
on Daniels Road when exiting the church.  Ms. Carson stated the sign would be the same size 
as it is now which does not block views of oncoming traffic. 

Matt DeSalvatoro, with Creative Signs, explained that the applicant wanted to keep the same 
sign cabinet as it was more cost effective to reuse the existing sign rather than building a new 
one.  The electronic sign will dim at night per code; the white light of the sign is actually 
amber so it is not as bright, and the transition messages use a 10 second rotation. 

Motion by Mark DeFuso to recommend approval of the Special Exception for 1450 
Daniels Road with Staff Recommendations (as provided in the agenda packet) and 
seconded by David Kassander.  Motion carried unanimously 5 – 0. 

DR
AF
T



 

MAY 4, 2015 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 6 
 

 
VARIANCE (PUBLIC HEARING) 
15. 229 N. Woodland Street – Arielle Pandolph-Schmidt & Stephan Schmidt 

Planner II Carson presented a request for a Variance to the minimum rear yard setback for 
the property located at 229 N. Woodland Street.  The applicant is requesting a Variance to 
allow a 15’ rear yard setback in lieu of the minimum required 28’ rear yard setback allowed 
in the R-2 zoning district.  If approved, this variance will allow the construction of a single-
family residence with a detached garage to be built on the property while protecting the site’s 
existing 3 large oak trees but the construction could not alter the existing drainage flow 
pattern.  Staff has reviewed the application and variance criteria and recommends approval. 

Motion by Will Hawthorne to recommend approval of the Variance for 229 N. 
Woodland Street with Staff Recommendations (as provided in the agenda packet) 
and seconded by Mark Maciel.  Motion carried unanimously 5 – 0. 

 
SITE PLAN 
16. 13838 Tilden Road – Windward Cay East, Inc. 

Planner II Carson presented a request for a Site Plan approval to construct a medical office 
building on a parcel within the Windward Cay East commercial center located at 13838 
Tilden Road.  The applicant is seeking approval of the Site Plan proposed which includes a 
new 5,794 sq. ft. single-story brick medical office building, as well as associated landscaping 
and other site improvements.  The proposed development is required to adhere to the site 
design and architectural standards of the property’s PCD zoning. 

Typically, site plans are not required to obtain approval from the Planning & Zoning Board 
prior to being placed on the City Commission agenda for approval.  However, the property’s 
PCD zoning ordinance (Ord. 00-36) Section II (13) states in part: Any new development on 
the subject property must submit detailed site plans for both Staff and the P&Z Board 
approval.  Staff has reviewed the application and recommends approval subject to the 
conditions referenced in the Staff Report. 

Motion by Mark Maciel to recommend approval of the Site Plan for Windward Cay 
Phase 3 at 13838 Tilden Road with Staff Recommendations (as provided in the 
agenda packet) and seconded by Eric Weiss.  Motion carried unanimously 5 – 0. 

 
CITY OF WINTER GARDEN CODE UPDATES (PUBLIC HEARING) 
17. Ordinance 15-41 – Accessory Structures 

Community Development Manager Pash presented a code amendment to Ordinance 15-41, 
Chapter 118 of the City Code, amending accessory buildings and accessory structures to 
create a definition that all greenhouses be reviewed and approved by Special Exception 
which includes the requirements for construction, material used, where they can be located 
on the property, and must be consistent with the principal building.  Staff recommends 
approval of Ordinance 15-41. 

Motion by David Kassander to recommend approval of Ordinance 15-41 with Staff 
Recommendations and seconded by Eric Weiss.  Motion carried unanimously 5 – 0. 

 
 
 
 

DR
AF
T



 

MAY 4, 2015 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 7 
 

18. Ordinance 15-49 - Billboards 
Community Development Director Ed Williams presented an amendment to Ordinance 15-49 
– Billboards.  One change was to page 6 - 3B which states that each message on digital 
billboards must be displayed for a minimum of 12 seconds is changed to 8 seconds.  
Currently the City does not allow new billboards but one can be replaced if under a certain 
value if it is destroyed in a storm.  A billboard can be relocated if one is removed.  The City 
is proposing the change to the City’s ordinance to recognize digital billboards and set up a 
procedure for removal of other regular billboards in exchange for a digital billboard. 

Mr. Williams had two key points in the proposed changes; 1) Recognize digital billboards 
and setting up criteria, and 2) Set up a procedure for billboard exchange subject to a 
negotiated agreement with the City.  When a company proposes installing a new digital 
billboard there will be a negotiated agreement with the City that the company remove a 
minimum of two regular billboards.  An exception would be if the sign has a public purpose 
then the City Council could approve removal of only one billboard. 

General discussion ensued regarding the definition of billboards, message centers, and signs, 
as well as the location, brightness and size depending on the road and speed of traffic. 

Craig Swygert, President of Clear Channel Outdoor, has been working on the negotiations 
and supports the change to the 8 second display time.  He encourages limiting the size of the 
copy area to 378 square feet which is an industry standard for a billboard 10 ½ feet tall by 36 
feet wide but to exclude the cabinet from the copy area.  Mr. Williams stated this would be 
addressed in the negotiated agreement on a case-by-case basis. 

Motion by Mark DeFuso to recommend approval of Ordinance 15-49 and seconded 
by Will Hawthorne.  Motion carried unanimously 5 – 0. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:12 pm. 
 

ATTEST:  APPROVED: 
   

Customer Service Rep. Kathleen Rathel  Chairman Eric Weiss 
 DR

AF
T



THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

ITEM # 5 (Public Hearing) 
 

 
DATE:  May 29, 2015 MEETING DATE:   June 1, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: 161 South Boyd Street (REZONING) 
 PROJECT NAME Kelso Investments 0.19 +/- ACRES) 
 PARCEL ID# 23-22-27-2888-08-070 
  

ISSUE: The applicant is requesting the property located at 161 South Boyd Street 
be rezoned from R-2 to C-1.  

  

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL/ANALYSIS: 
  

OWNER/APPLICANT: Kelso Investments, LLC 
  

CURRENT ZONING: R-2 Residential District 
  

PROPOSED ZONING: C-1 Central Commercial District 
  

CURRENT FLU: DT Downtown Transitional  
  

PROPOSED FLU: N/A 
  

SUMMARY: 
 The subject property consists of a 0.19 ± acre lot located at 161 

South Boyd Street on the east side of South Boyd Street, north of 
West Smith Street and south of Tremaine Street.  The R-2 zoned 
property is developed with a duplex and the applicant is requesting 
to rezone the property to C-1 Central Commercial District to 
convert the duplex into office space, which is consistent with the 
existing Downtown Transitional FLU designation. (See attached 
Staff Report).  

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 Staff recommends approval of Ordinance 15-52 subject to the 

conditions in the staff report.   
  

NEXT STEP(S):  
 A public hearing for the first reading of the ordinance is scheduled 

for the City Commission on Thursday, June 11, 2015. 
  

ATTACHMENT(S):  
 Location Map 
 Staff Report 
 Ordinance 15-52 
  
 



LOCATION MAP 
 

161 S. Boyd Street 
 

REZONING 
 
 
 

 



P&Z : PH11-038 
 

CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION 

300 West Plant Street - Winter Garden, Florida 34787-3011 ● (407) 656-4111 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:   PLANNING AND ZONING COMMITTEE 
PREPARED BY:  STEVE PASH, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT MANAGER 
DATE:  MAY 27, 2015 
SUBJECT:  REZONING TO C-1 
   161 South Boyd Street (0.19 +/- ACRES) 
   PARCEL ID # 23-22-27-2888-08-070 
    
APPLICANT: KELSO INVESTMENTS, LLC 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The purpose of this report is to evaluate the proposed project for compliance with the City of 
Winter Garden Code of Ordinances and Comprehensive Plan. 
The subject property, located at 161 South Boyd Street on the east side of South Boyd Street, 
north of West Smith Street and south of Tremaine Street, is approximately 0.19 ±  acres. The 
map below depicts the location of the subject property within the City of Winter Garden 
municipal limits: 

 



161 South Boyd Street (0.19 ±  acres) 
Rezoning - Staff Report 

 June 1, 2105 
Page 2 

 

P&Z : PH11-038 
 

The applicant is requesting to rezone 0.19 ± acres of land. The subject property is located within 
the City of Winter Garden municipal limits, and carries the zoning designation R-2 (Residential 
District). The subject property is designated DT (Downtown Transitional) on the Future Land 
Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan.  
 

EXISTING USE 
The subject property is currently developed with a duplex and the owner intends to convert it 
into office space. 
 

ADJACENT LAND USE AND ZONING 
The property located to the north is developed with the City’s old fire station, which is now used 
as an art galary, zoned C-1, and located in the City.  The property to the south is developed with 
a duplex, zoned R-2, and located in the City. The properties to the west are developed with an 
office and a City parking lot, zoned C-1, and located in the City.  The property to the east is 
developed with a duplex, zoned R-2, and located in the City 
 

PROPOSED USE 
The applicant is requesting to rezone the property to C-1 for future development.  In order to 
rezone and develop this property, the owner will need to follow all of the requirements and 
permitted uses within the C-1 Zoning District, which only allows residential as an upper story 
use with office or commercial on the first floor.  Redevelopment of this property may also 
require the assembly of more land to provide the minimum lot requirements and to provide 
parking for the proposed use.  If the minimum number of spaces cannot be provided, the Code 
allows the porperties in the downtown core to purchase parking spaces for $5,000.00 per parking 
space.  
 
SUMMARY 
Staff recommends approval of Ordinance 15-52 to rezone the property to C-1, subject to the 
following conditions: 
 

1. All non-conforming uses shall stop prior to the adoption of Ordinance 15-52. 
2. Residential uses on this property shall only be allowed on upper floors. 
3. Any proposed redevelopment shall be reviewed through Site Plan Review and may 

require the assembly of multiple lots to meet development requirements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



161 South Boyd Street (0.19 ±  acres) 
Rezoning - Staff Report 

 June 1, 2105 
Page 3 

 

P&Z : PH11-038 
 

 
 
 
 
 
MAPS 
  

AERIAL PHOTO 
161 South Boyd Street 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



161 South Boyd Street (0.19 ±  acres) 
Rezoning - Staff Report 

 June 1, 2105 
Page 4 

 

P&Z : PH11-038 
 

 
 
 

ZONING MAP 
161 South Boyd Street 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Subject Property 
changed from City 

R-2 to City C-1 



161 South Boyd Street (0.19 ±  acres) 
Rezoning - Staff Report 

 June 1, 2105 
Page 5 

 

P&Z : PH11-038 
 

 
 
 

FUTURE LAND USE  MAP 
161 South Boyd Street 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Subject Property 
existing Downtown 
Transitional FLU 



161 South Boyd Street (0.19 ±  acres) 
Rezoning - Staff Report 

 June 1, 2105 
Page 6 

 

P&Z : PH11-038 
 

 
 

PHOTOGRAPH 
161 South Boyd Street 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

END OF STAFF REPORT 



 
Ordinance 15-52 

Page 1 of 3 

ORDINANCE 15-52 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, 
FLORIDA, REZONING CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 
GENERALLY DESCRIBED AS APPROXIMATELY 0.19 +/- 
ACRES OF LAND LOCATED AT 161 SOUTH BOYD 
STREET ON THE EAST SIDE OF SOUTH BOYD STREET 
NORTH OF WEST SMITH STREET AND SOUTH OF 
TREMAINE STREET, FROM R-2 (RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) 
TO C-1 (CENTRAL COMMERCIAL DISTRICT); PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the owner(s) of real property generally described as approximately 
0.19 ± acres of certain real property generally located at 161 South Boyd Street on the 
east side of South Boyd Street, north of West Smith Street and south of Tremaine Street 
in Winter Garden, Florida, being more particularly described on Exhibit “A” attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by this reference (the “Property”), desire to rezone their 
property from City R-2 to City C-1, and 
 
 WHEREAS, after public notice and due consideration of public comment, the 
City Commission of the City of Winter Garden hereby finds and declares the rezoning 
approved by this Ordinance is consistent with the City of Winter Garden 
Comprehensive Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, further, the City Commission finds that based on competent, 
substantial evidence in the record, the rezoning approved by this Ordinance meets all 
applicable criteria for rezoning the Property to C-1 Central Commercial District 
contained within the City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan and the Code of 
Ordinances.  
 
  
 BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA:  
 
 SECTION 1: Rezoning.  The above “Whereas” clauses constitute findings by the 
City Commission.  After due notice and public hearing, the zoning classification of real 
property legally described on ATTACHMENT “A,” is hereby rezoned from R-2 
Residential District to C-1 Central Commercial District in the City of Winter Garden, 
Florida.  
 
 SECTION 2: Zoning Map.  The City Planner is hereby authorized and directed to 
amend the Official Winter Garden Zoning Map in accordance with the provisions of this 
ordinance. 
 
 SECTION 3: Non-Severability.  Should any portion of this Ordinance be held 
invalid, then the entire Ordinance shall be null and void. 



 
Ordinance 15-52 

Page 2 of 3 

 
 SECTION 4: Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon 
adoption at its second reading. 
 
 SECTION 5: Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon 
adoption at its second reading. 
  
FIRST READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  , 2015. 
 
SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  

 
, 2015. 

 
ADOPTED this ______ day of _____________, 2015, by the City Commission of the 
City of Winter Garden, Florida. 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      JOHN REES, Mayor/Commissioner 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
KATHY GOLDEN, City Clerk 
  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Ordinance 15-52 

Page 3 of 3 

 
Exhibit “A” 

 
 
 

 
 

 



THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

ITEM #  6 
 

DATE:  May 29, 2015 MEETING DATE: June 1, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: 14966 Siplin Road, 505 & 807 Avalon Road (PRELIMINARY PLAT) 
 PROJECT NAME Oxford Chase Subdivision 
 PARCEL ID# 27-22-27-0000-00-068, 34-22-27-0000-00-003,  

27-22-27-0000-00-069 
  
ISSUE: The applicant is requesting a Preliminary Plat for 103 single family 

residential units in the Oxford Chase Subdivision. 
  
SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL/ANALYSIS: 
  
OWNER/APPLICANT: Mattamy Orlando, LLC  
  
CURRENT ZONING: PUD (Planned Unit Development) 
  
PROPOSED ZONING: N/A 
  
CURRENT FLU: SUB (Suburban Residential) 
  
PROPOSED FLU: N/A 
  
SUMMARY: 
 Applicant proposes a Preliminary Plat for 103 single family 

residential units within the 67.37 +/- acre subject property.  The 
proposed Preliminary Plat is consistent with the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan and the City of Winter Garden Code of 
Ordinances.  The proposed Preliminary Plat is consistent with the 
Planned Unit Development (PUD) Zoning of the property. 

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 City staff recommends conditional approval of the Preliminary Plat 

of 103 single family residential units in the Oxford Chase 
Subdivision. Conditional approval will allow the owner to proceed 
with development plans as well as the final plat. Conditional 
approval of the proposed Preliminary Plat is subject to conditions 
of all prior development approvals including PUD Rezoning 
Ordinance 14-33 and the SunRidge Boulevard Proportionate Fair 
Share Agreement.  

  
NEXT STEP(S):  
 Submit Subdivision Construction Plans and Final Plat. 
  
ATTACHMENT(S):  
 Location Map 
 Staff Report 
 Preliminary Plat 
 



LOCATION MAP 

14966 SIPLIN ROAD, 505 & 807 AVALON ROAD  

PRELIMINARY PLAT 

 

 



 

CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION 

300 West Plant Street - Winter Garden, Florida 34787-3011 ● (407) 656-4111 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:   PLANNING AND ZONING COMMITTEE 
PREPARED BY:   KELLY CARSON, PLANNER II 
DATE:   MAY 28, 2015 
SUBJECT:   PRELIMINARY PLAT 
   OXFORD CHASE PROPERTY 
   14966 SIPLIN ROAD, 505 & 807AVALON ROAD (67.37 +/- ACRES) 
    PARCEL ID #    27-22-27-0000-00-068, 34-22-27-0000-00-003,  
 27-22-27-0000-00-069 
    
      
APPLICANT:  MATTAMY ORLANDO, LLC 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The purpose of this report is to evaluate the proposed preliminary plat for compliance with the 
City of Winter Garden Code of Ordinances and Comprehensive Plan. 
The subject property is located at 14966 Siplin Road, and 505 & 807 Avalon Road and is 
approximately 67.37± acres. The map below depicts the location of the subject property within 
the City of Winter Garden municipal limits. 

 



Oxford Chase PUD Subdivision 
Avalon/Siplin Road (67.37 ± acres) 

Pre-Plat - Staff Report 
May 28, 2015 

Page 2 

 

 
EXISTING USE 
The subject property consists of vacant unimproved upland, a wetland/karst feature, and a 
portion of Black Lake. The property was rezoned to PUD (Planned Unit Development) in 2014, 
and the property’s future land use designation in the City’s Comprehensive Plan was amended to 
Suburban Residential. 
 

ADJACENT LAND USE AND ZONING 
The properties located to the north of the subject property are single family residences located 
within Unincorporated Orange County. The properties located to the west include vacant land 
that is located within the City of Winter Garden, single family residences within the Johns Lake 
Pointe Planned Unit Development subdivision located within the City of Winter Garden, and the 
Oasis Community Church located within the City of Winter Garden. The subject property is 
bordered on the south by Black Lake. The property to the east is the recently approved Black 
Lake Preserve Planned Unit Development subdivision which is within the City of Winter Garden 
and is actively under construction. 
 

PROPOSED USE 
The applicant is requesting preliminary plat approval to move forward with development plans 
and the final plat. The property has been rezoned to PUD to develop the 67.37 ± acre site into a 
residential subdivision containing 103 single-family dwelling units. The subdivision will have a 
gross density of 2.53 dwelling units per acre, the SUB- Suburban Residential Future Land Use 
Designation allows up to 4 dwelling units per acre. The subdivision will contain 2.21 acres of 
combined recreation areas including a dog walk, tot lot, recreation trails, and open spaces. 
The project contains a mixture of 70’x120’ lots and 65’x120’ lots, with a total of 40 lots at 65’ 
wide and 63 lots at 70’ or wider. 
 

SUMMARY 
City Staff recommends conditional approval of the Preliminary Plat subject to the following 
condition(s): 

• SunRidge Boulevard has been constructed with two lanes, and has recently been expanded 
to four lanes.  This project, along with others along this corridor have agreed to participate 
in the funding of the widening to four lanes. 

• As discussed with the Developer and Design Engineer, SunRidge Blvd. is currently under 
construction to accommodate the 4-lane widening as well as the turn lanes and median 
opening shown on this pre-plat.  Change order #1 reflects the additional cost for the turn 
lanes and median opening and shall be paid for by the Developer prior to start of 
construction. 

• The joint City/HOA Stormwater area shown can accommodate up to 4.84 acres per the 
attached Exhibit 5 of the SJRWMD permit application and is proposed to be expanded. 

• Typical Section:  Right-of-way width shall be a minimum of 50 feet with minimum 
roadway pavement width of 24’ as required by City Code (12’ minimum each lane); 16’ 
minimum lane width for any divided portion (additional width may be required if parking 
is allowed); 18” of clean fill with no more than 5% passing a #200 sieve required under the 



Oxford Chase PUD Subdivision 
Avalon/Siplin Road (67.37 ± acres) 

Pre-Plat - Staff Report 
May 28, 2015 

Page 3 

 

subbase; 98% density required on all compaction; 2” minimum asphalt thickness; 10” 
minimum soil cement base thickness; minimum 24” wide concrete curb and gutter required 
(or Miami curb); 5’ wide concrete sidewalks required on both sides of street; minimum 10’ 
wide drainage, utility and sidewalk easements required adjacent to all rights-of-way.  All 
construction shall meet City of Winter Garden requirements for drainage, roadways and 
utilities(see City Standard Details available on-line at cwgdn.com).  As requested by the 
Developer, 1” of asphalt can be installed prior to C of C, and the second lift of 1” can be 
installed after home construction, if covered by a bond or letter of credit. 

• A Karst Feature Evaluation report by Universal Engineering was submitted dated 4/08/15 
and is acceptable.  Provide further geotechnical reporting with construction plan submittal 
addressing groundwater table, presence of organic soils, need for underdrains, etc. 

• The environmental report states that gopher tortoises may be active on site and that it is 
unlikely habitat for sand skinks.  Provide approvals from FFWCC prior to construction that 
these species have been addressed. 

• Walls and landscaping shall be located within a landscape and wall tract, to be maintained 
by the HOA. 

• It appears the project will be gated.  While portions of the right-of-way may be dedicated to 
the City, maintenance of special pavements, landscaping, hardscaping, etc. shall be 
performed by the HOA under a R/W maintenance agreement. 

• All proposed easements shall be 30’ minimum width for sanitary, water and storm; 
improvements shall be centered within the easement.  Common areas not abutting right-of-
way shall include a tract (not easement) for access and maintenance.  

• Utilities:  Minimum 8” potable water (internal), 8” reuse water, and minimum 6” sanitary 
force main are required.  

• Minimum 5 ft. wide utility and drainage easements shall be provided on each side lot line; 
10’ drainage, utility and sidewalk easements required adjacent to R/W. 

• Some of this property appears to be “A” type soils and may require adherence to the City’s 
Wekiva protection regulations.  Wekiva Protection requirements as outlined in the 
Comprehensive Plan shall be met, especially for drainage and Karst protection.  Although 
the geotechnical reports have stated that the “A” type soils are not “most effective 
recharge” soils, final determination shall be made by the SJRWMD concerning drainage 
design.  Soil borings for Karst features was acknowledged and accepted with the rezoning 
review and with the recent Karst Evaluation report. 

• All irrigation on the site shall be designed to be supplied by reclaimed water (minimum 8” 
internal main size). 

• The wetland impacts shown on the pre-plat will require some form of mitigation by the 
Saint Johns River Water Management District (SJRWMD). Mitigation may include 
wetland creation, enhancement, or restoration; wetland preservation; and/or the purchase of 
mitigation credits from a mitigation bank. Issuance of the SJRWMD permit, which will 
include required mitigation, is a City requirement during the Construction Plans Review. 

• Per Ordinance 14-33, nothing may constructed within the 5’ side yard easements including 
pools, A/C pads & units, BBQ equipment, etc.  Fences and landscaping installed within the 
side yard easements shall be designed to not interfere with any easement functions and 
requires permitting by the City.   



Oxford Chase PUD Subdivision 
Avalon/Siplin Road (67.37 ± acres) 

Pre-Plat - Staff Report 
May 28, 2015 

Page 4 

 

 
 
  

AERIAL PHOTO 
OXFORD CHASE 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Oxford Chase PUD Subdivision 
Avalon/Siplin Road (67.37 ± acres) 

Pre-Plat - Staff Report 
May 28, 2015 

Page 5 

 

 
 

 
 

ZONING MAP 
OXFORD CHASE 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Oxford Chase PUD Subdivision 
Avalon/Siplin Road (67.37 ± acres) 

Pre-Plat - Staff Report 
May 28, 2015 

Page 6 

 

 
 
 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
OXFORD CHASE 

 

 
 
 

END OF STAFF REPORT 













































THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

ITEM # 7 (Public Hearing) 
 

 
DATE:  May 29, 2015 MEETING DATE: June 1, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: 3107 Daniels Road, Suite 102 (Main property address: 3017 Daniels 

Road) (SPECIAL EXCEPTION PERMIT) 
 PROJECT NAME Verizon Wireless Antennas 
 PARCEL ID# 35-22-27-9398-03-010 
  
ISSUE: The applicant is requesting a Special Exception Permit to allow for the 

installation of two antennas on a building located at 3107 Daniels Road. 
  
SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL/ANALYSIS: 
  
OWNER/APPLICANT: Verizon Wireless 
  
CURRENT ZONING: PCD - Planned Commercial Development 
  
PROPOSED ZONING: N/A 
  
CURRENT FLU: BC - South Beltway Center 
  
PROPOSED FLU: N/A 
  
  
SUMMARY: 
 The applicant is requesting a special exception permit to allow the 

installation of two antennas with related telecommunication 
equipment on the rooftop of a building within the Winter Garden 
Village at Fowler Groves commercial development. The Winter 
Garden Village at Fowler Groves PCD ordinance allows the 
installation of communication towers and antennas through special 
exception if they meet the special exception requirements.  

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 Staff recommends approval of the Special Exception subject to the 

condition listed in the Staff Report. 
  
NEXT STEP(S):  
 Apply for building permits.  
  
ATTACHMENT(S):  
 Location Map 
 Staff Report 
 



LOCATION MAP 
 

3107 Daniels Road, Suite 102  
(Main property address: 3017 Daniels Road) 

 
SPECIAL EXCEPTION PERMIT 

 

 



CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION 

300 West Plant Street - Winter Garden, Florida 34787-3011 ● (407) 656-4111 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:  PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
PREPARED BY:  KELLY CARSON, PLANNER II 
DATE:  MAY 28, 2015 
SUBJECT:  SPECIAL EXCEPTION PERMIT 

  3107 Daniels Road, Suite 102 (Main property address: 3017 Daniels Road) 
(Antennas) 

    PARCEL ID #  35-22-27-9398-03-010 
    
APPLICANT: Verizon Wireless 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The purpose of this report is to evaluate the proposed special exception permit for compliance 
with the City of Winter Garden Code of Ordinances and Comprehensive Plan. 

The subject property is located at 3107 Daniels Road, Suite 102 (Main property address: 3017 
Daniels Road). The map below depicts the location of the subject property within the City of 
Winter Garden municipal limits:  

 



Verizon Wireless 
3107 Daniels Road, Suite 102 

Special Exception Permit - Staff Report 
May 28, 2015 

Page 2 
 
 
The request is for a Special Exception Permit to allow the installation of two antennas with 
related telecommunication equipment on the rooftop of a building within the Winter Garden 
Village at Fowler Groves commercial development. The subject property is located within the 
City of Winter Garden municipal limits, carries the zoning designation PCD (Planned 
Commercial Development), and is designated South Beltway Center on the Future Land Use 
Map of the Comprehensive Plan.   
  
EXISTING/PROPOSED USE 
The subject property is a suite in a multi-tenant commercial building located in the Winter 
Garden Village at Fowler Groves commercial development. The subject suite is approximately 
3,000 sf and is occupied by Verizon Wireless. The total square footage of the building is 
approximately 11,090 sf. The other businesses currently operating in the building include South 
Beach Tanning Company, AT&T, and Five Guys Burger and Fries.  

The applicant proposes to add two non-penetrating antennas and related telecommunication 
equipment on the roof of the Verizon Wireless suite. The two antennas will each be mounted on 
mast pipes that adjust from 8’-12’ in height. The northernmost antenna would replace an existing 
repeater antenna, which is set lower than the roofline. This proposed antenna will likely not be 
visible from ground level due to its position on the roof adjacent to an approximately 6’ tall 
parapet wall. Also, there are several dense, mature trees located adjacent to the building face 
closest to this proposed antenna that would almost completely obscure it from view. The antenna 
that is located further south will be visible from ground level, especially along the southeast 
elevation. Here, the closest parapet wall is approximately 3’ in height and there is no adjacent 
vegetation that would obscure the antenna from view. Depending on how high the pole is 
adjusted, approximately 6’-10’ of antenna will be visible.  
 
ADJACENT LAND USE AND ZONING 
The properties located to the west are, like the subject property, part of the Winter Garden 
Village at Fowler Groves and feature several commercial buildings. These parcels are zoned 
PCD (Planned Commercial Development) and are within the City of Winter Garden Municipal 
Limits. The properties to the south and east of the subject property also include Fowler Groves 
commercial parcels zoned PCD in the City, as well as a segment of Florida State Road 429.   The 
properties located to the north of the subject property are all part of the Grovehurst Subdivision, 
which contains single-family houses. These properties are zoned PUD and are within the City of 
Winter Garden Municipal Limits. 
 
SUMMARY 
City Staff recommends approval of the proposed special exception permit to allow two antennas 
with related telecommunication equipment to be installed on the rooftop of a building located at 
3107 Daniels Road, Suite 102 subject to the following condition: 

• The plans note that the proposed antenna poles are adjustable from 8’-12’ in height. 
However, the permitted height of the antennas from roof level to the top of the structure 
is limited to what’s shown in submitted elevations, which is 10’-8”.  



Verizon Wireless 
3107 Daniels Road, Suite 102 

Special Exception Permit - Staff Report 
May 28, 2015 

Page 3 
 

Aerial Map 
3107 Daniels Road, Suite 102  

(Main property address: 3017 Daniels Road)  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Verizon Wireless 
3107 Daniels Road, Suite 102 

Special Exception Permit - Staff Report 
May 28, 2015 

Page 4 
 

Zoning Map 
3107 Daniels Road, Suite 102  

(Main property address: 3017 Daniels Road) 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Verizon Wireless 
3107 Daniels Road, Suite 102 

Special Exception Permit - Staff Report 
May 28, 2015 

Page 5 
 

Future Land Use Map 
3107 Daniels Road, Suite 102  

(Main property address: 3017 Daniels Road) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



Verizon Wireless 
3107 Daniels Road, Suite 102 

Special Exception Permit - Staff Report 
May 28, 2015 

Page 6 
Proposed Roof Plan 

3107 Daniels Road, Suite 102  
(Main property address: 3017 Daniels Road) 

 

 
 
 



Verizon Wireless 
3107 Daniels Road, Suite 102 

Special Exception Permit - Staff Report 
May 28, 2015 

Page 7 
Proposed Antenna Locations 
3107 Daniels Road, Suite 102  

(Main property address: 3017 Daniels Road) 
 

 
 



Verizon Wireless 
3107 Daniels Road, Suite 102 

Special Exception Permit - Staff Report 
May 28, 2015 

Page 8 

 
 

END OF STAFF REPORT 

 



THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

ITEM # 8 (Public Hearing) 
 

 
DATE:  May 29, 2015 MEETING DATE: June 1, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: 1450 Daniels Road (SPECIAL EXCEPTION PERMIT) 
 PROJECT NAME Harvest of Hope Greenhouse 
 PARCEL ID# 26-22-27-0000-00-014 
  
ISSUE: The applicant is requesting a Special Exception Permit to construction of 

a greenhouse in an R-2 Zoning District.  
  
SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL/ANALYSIS: 
  
OWNER/APPLICANT: 1450 Daniels Road/Mathew’s Hope 
  
CURRENT ZONING: R-2 Residential District 
  
PROPOSED ZONING: N/A 
  
CURRENT FLU: Low Density Residential 
  
PROPOSED FLU: N/A 
  
  
SUMMARY: 
 The applicant is requesting special exception to allow construction 

of a greenhouse in an R-2 Zoning District.  Ordinance 15-41 was 
recently adopted, which allows greenhouses through a special 
exception if it meets the special exception requirements and 
design criteria.  

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 Staff recommends approval of constructing a greenhouse if it is 

redesigned to meet the requirements of Ordinance 15-41 (subject 
to the conditions in the staff report). 

  
NEXT STEP(S):  
 Redesign the greenhouse and then submit for building permits. 
  
ATTACHMENT(S):  
 Location Map 
 Staff Report 
 



LOCATION MAP 
 

1450 Daniels Road 
 

SPECIAL EXCEPTION 
 
 
 

 



CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION 

300 West Plant Street - Winter Garden, Florida 34787-3011 ● (407) 656-4111 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:  PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
PREPARED BY:  STEVE PASH, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT MANAGER 
DATE:  MAY 29, 2015 
SUBJECT:  SPECIAL EXCEPTION PERMIT 

  1450 Daniels Road (Greenhouse) 
    PARCEL ID # 26-22-27-0000-00-014 
    
APPLICANT: Church of Christ of West Orange/Mathew’s Hope 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The purpose of this report is to evaluate the proposed special exception permit for compliance 
with the City of Winter Garden Code of Ordinances and Comprehensive Plan. 

The subject property is located at 1450 Daniels Road. The map below depicts the location of the 
subject property within the City of Winter Garden municipal limits: 

 
 



Church of Christ of West Orange 
1450 Daniels Road 

Special Exception Permit (Greenhouse) - Staff Report 
June 1, 2015 

Page 2 
 
The request is for a Special Exception Permit to allow construction of a greenhouse on the 
church property, which is zoned R-2. The subject property is located within the City of Winter 
Garden municipal limits, carries the zoning designation R-2, and is designated Low Density 
Residential on the Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan.   
  
EXISTING/PROPOSED USE 
The property currently contains two large structures: one approx. 13,500 sf building built in 1969 
used as office/classroom and one approx. 33,300 sf building constructed in 1998 used for church 
services and administration offices. The majority of the site is currently being used to support the 
Church of Christ of West Orange’s religious services, administration, classes, events, and other 
church-related functions. The Applied Behavior Center for Autism was recently granted a 
Special Exception Permit to utilize approximately 2,000 square feet of space within the existing 
13,500 sf building to provide applied behavior analysis therapy to children with autism and 
related disabilities. Also located on site is a modular office building operated by Matthew’s 
Hope, which is a nonprofit organization that offers financial resources, medical assistance, food, 
and other support services to members of the community who are homeless or on the cusp of 
homelessness. They were recently granted a Special Exception Permit to locate two temporary 
used modular buildings on site to support a preschool, which will largely accommodate children 
of families served by Matthew’s Hope.  

The applicant also has a large garden on site that they use to grow vegetables which they sell at 
the local farmers markets to help employ the homeless and raise money to finance their 
operations.  They are now proposing to build a 30 foot X 48 foot greenhouse to use as part of the 
garden operations.  The greenhouse is proposed to be built using polycarbonate (corrugated 
plastic) material for the roof and part of the siding.  About half of the side is constructed using  
corrugated metal and the remainder is a roll up curtain over a bug screen (see pictures on pages 8 
& 9). Since the City does not have Agriclutural Zoning, we recently adopted Ordinance 15-41 to 
establish requirements for greenhouses in residential districts.  The ordinance requires that all 
greenhouses be considered only by Special Exception, that they meet the same setbacks required 
for accessory strutures (based on size), and that all greenhouses shall be designed to blend 
aesthetically with the principal building and shall be constructed of permanent building materials 
such as metal, glass or wood although composite materials may be considered.  Greenhouses 
shall not be constructed of temporary materials such as plastic, visqueen or cloth. Also, 
fiberglass shall not be used in the construction of greenhouses 
 
ADJACENT LAND USE AND ZONING 
The property located to the west is, like the subject property, owned by the Church of Christ of 
West Orange. It’s zoned R-2 and is within the City of Winter Garden Municipal Limits.  It 
contains a road connecting an internal church drive to Winter Garden Vineland Road. This 
property contains a pond.    
The property located to the north of the subject property is also being used by a religious 
organization: the Resurrection Catholic Church. It contains three church facility buildings and 
one warehouse/storage building. This property is zoned C-2 and is within the City of Winter 
Garden Municipal Limits. 
The property located to the east of the subject property is the Daniels Crossing Subdivision, 
which contains single-family houses. This property is zoned PUD and is within the City of 



Church of Christ of West Orange 
1450 Daniels Road 

Special Exception Permit (Greenhouse) - Staff Report 
June 1, 2015 

Page 3 
Winter Garden Municipal Limits. 
One of the properties located to the south of the subject property, across the Florida Turnpike, is 
owned and operated by the City of Winter Garden and contains a water processing facility.  This 
property is zoned R-1 and is within the City of Winter Garden Municipal limits.  Also located to 
the south of the subject property is a small segment of a larger commercial property, containing 
the Winter Garden Professional Center.  This property has been developed to support a mix of 
uses (United Cerebral Palsy School, various office & retail businesses, etc.).  It’s zoned PCD and 
is within the City of Winter Garden Municipal Limits.   
 
SUMMARY 
Staff does not support the greenhouse as proposed, because the materials do not follow the 
minimum code requirements outlined in Ordinance 15-41.   

Staff would recommend approval of the proposed special exception permit to allow a greenhouse 
subject to the following conditions: 

1. The greenhouse shall be designed to blend aesthetically with the principal building and 
shall be constructed of permanent building materials such as metal, glass or wood.   

2. The greenhouse shall not be constructed of any temporary materials such as plastic, 
visqueen, cloth, or any fiberglass. 

3. Meet all applicable building code requirements and setbacks. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Church of Christ of West Orange 
1450 Daniels Road 

Special Exception Permit (Greenhouse) - Staff Report 
June 1, 2015 

Page 4 
 

Aerial Map 
1450 Daniels Road 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Church of Christ of West Orange 
1450 Daniels Road 

Special Exception Permit (Greenhouse) - Staff Report 
June 1, 2015 

Page 5 
Zoning Map 

1450 Daniels Road 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Church of Christ of West Orange 
1450 Daniels Road 

Special Exception Permit (Greenhouse) - Staff Report 
June 1, 2015 

Page 6 
Future Land Use Map 

1450 Daniels Road 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Church of Christ of West Orange 
1450 Daniels Road 

Special Exception Permit (Greenhouse) - Staff Report 
June 1, 2015 

Page 7 
Aerial Photo Showing Proposed Greenhouse  

1450 Daniels Road 

 
 



Church of Christ of West Orange 
1450 Daniels Road 

Special Exception Permit (Greenhouse) - Staff Report 
June 1, 2015 

Page 8 
Greenhouse Plans 
1450 Daniels Road 

 

 
 
 

Pictures of Proposed Greenhouse 
1450 Daniels Road 

 

 
 
 



Church of Christ of West Orange 
1450 Daniels Road 

Special Exception Permit (Greenhouse) - Staff Report 
June 1, 2015 

Page 9 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

END OF STAFF REPORT 

 



THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

ITEM # 9 (Public Hearing) 
 

 
DATE:  May 29, 2015 MEETING DATE: June 1, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: 12801 W. Colonial Drive (SPECIAL EXCEPTION PERMIT) 
 PROJECT NAME Wild Hogs Scooters 
 PARCEL ID# 12-22-27-6469-32-016 
  
ISSUE: The applicant is requesting a Special Exception Permit to allow for the 

property located at 12801 West Colonial Drive to be used for Automobile 
Sales and Services to operate a scooter shop.  

  
SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL/ANALYSIS: 
  
OWNER/APPLICANT: 12801 W. Colonial Drive, Wild Hogs Scooters/Andrew Freedman 
  
CURRENT ZONING: C-2 Arterial Commercial District 
  
PROPOSED ZONING: N/A 
  
CURRENT FLU: Commercial 
  
PROPOSED FLU: N/A 
  
  
SUMMARY: 
 The applicant is requesting special exception to allow a portion of 

the building to be used as an automobile sales facility to sell 
scooters and the remainder of the building to be used for 
automobile services to work on scooters.  The C-2 Zoning district 
allows vehicle sales and services through special exception if it 
meets the special exception requirements.  

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 Staff recommends tabling the Special Exception request until the 

July 6, 2015 meeting. 
  
NEXT STEP(S):  
 N/A 
  
ATTACHMENT(S):  
 Location Map 
 Staff Report 
 



LOCATION MAP 
 

12801 W. Colonial Drive 
 

SPECIAL EXCEPTION 
 
 
 

 



THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

ITEM # 10 (Public Hearing) 
 

 
DATE:  May 28, 2015 MEETING DATE: June 1, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: 15344 Johns Lake Pointe Boulevard (VARIANCE) 
 PROJECT NAME Wraith Variance 
 PARCEL ID# 28-22-27-4025-02-880 
  
ISSUE: The applicant is requesting a Variance to allow the house to remain 2 feet 

inside a 10 foot wide drainage and wall easement and to allow the 
existing brick pavers to remain over the entire 10 foot wide drainage and 
wall easement.  

  
SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL/ANALYSIS: 
  
OWNER/APPLICANT: Charles and Pamela Wraith 
  
CURRENT ZONING: PUD Planned Unit Development District 
  
PROPOSED ZONING: N/A 
  
CURRENT FLU: Low Density Residential 
  
PROPOSED FLU: N/A 
  
  
SUMMARY: 
 Applicant is requesting the variance to allow the existing house to 

remain 2 feet inside the 10 foot wide drainage and wall easement 
and to allow the existing brick pavers to remain on the entire 
remaining portion of the 10 foot wide drainage and wall easement.  

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 Staff recommends approval of the variance request. 
  
NEXT STEP(S):  
 Apply for and get a building permit for the brick pavers. 
  
ATTACHMENT(S):  
 Location Map 
 Staff Report 

 
 



LOCATION MAP 
 

15344 Johns Lake Pointe Blvd. 
 

VARIANCE 
 
 
 

 



CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION 

300 West Plant Street - Winter Garden, Florida 34787-3011 ● (407) 656-4111 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:  PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
PREPARED BY:  STEVE PASH, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT MANAGER 
DATE:  MAY 28, 2015 
SUBJECT:  VARIANCE 
   15344 Johns Lake Pointe Bouldevard (0.30+/- ACRES) 
   PARCEL ID # 28-22-27-4025-02-880 
      
APPLICANT:  Charles and Pamela Wraith 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The purpose of this report is to evaluate the request for a variance for property located at 15344 
Johns Lake Pointe Boulevard in Winter Garden, Florida. The request is to allow the house to 
remain 2 feet inside a 10 foot wide drainage and wall easement and to allow the existing brick 
pavers to remain over the entire 10 foot wide drainage and wall easement.  
The subject property, located on Johns Lake Pointe Boulevard, is an approximately 0.30 ± acre 
lot in the Johns Lake Pointe Subdivision. The map below depicts the location of the subject 
property within the City of Winter Garden municipal limits: 

 



15344 Johns Lake Pointe Boulevard – 0.30 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

June 1, 2015 
Page 2 

The permit to construct the single family residence on this property was approved by all City 
departments in February of 2014.  After construction of this home and other homes in this 
neighborhood was completed, it was discovered that the developer had changed some of the 
platted easements without the City’s consent or knowledge.  Once the City discovered the 
easement had been changed, we met with the developer and builder to reestablish the drainage 
and wall easement.  This home had been permitted based on the altered easement and once the 
easement was reestablished it was discovered that this home was located 2 feet inside the 
easement.  Rather than tear the structure down, the applicant was advised to apply for a variance 
to rectify this situation.   
The subject property carries the zoning designation PUD (Planned Unit Development) and is 
designated LR (Low Density Residential) on the Future Land Use Map of the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan.  
 
EXISTING USE 
The existing residential structure is currently occupied by the owners and was issued a 
Certificate of Occupancy on July 21, 2014.  The applicant was informed of the easement after 
they had purchased the home.  
 
ADJACENT LAND USE AND ZONING 
All of the properties adjacent to the subject property are zoned PUD and in the Johns Lake 
Pointe neighborhood, which is within the City of Winter Garden’s Municipal limits. The 
properties to the north, south, and east of the subject property are all developed with single 
family residences. The property to the west is a conservation area.   
 
PROPOSED USE 
The applicant is requesting the variance to allow the existing home to remain 2 feet inside the 10 
foot easement and to allow the existing brick pavers to remain on the entire 10 foot wide 
drainage and wall easement.   
 
CODE REFERENCE 
Sec. 110-203(d) of the City Code of Ordinances addresses easements requirements. This section 
states, “Use within easements. Subject to applicable provisions of the code, upon written 
approval of the city planner and the execution of an approved release and indemnity agreement, 
fences, walls, landscaping, driveways, and such other non-permanent improvements, as may be 
determined by the city planner, may be installed, constructed or otherwise placed under, over, 
and on the easements described in subparagraphs (a) or (b) above by the fee simple owner of the 
lands subject to said easements. For purposes of this paragraph, swimming pools and buildings 
shall be considered permanent improvements. The city planner may request that said owner 
provide a survey depicting the applicable easements and the property boundaries, and a title 
opinion or such other documentation evidencing that the applicant is the fee simple owner of 
said lands and may impose such other conditions as may be necessary to protect the purpose of 
the easement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any use within said easements shall constitute a 
license for permissive use only and that the installation, construction or placement of 
improvements under, over or on said easements shall not operate to create or vest any property 
rights to any portion of the said easement or otherwise diminish, interfere, or modify the city's 
use of the said easements or use by other private parties, such as utility companies, to maintain, 



15344 Johns Lake Pointe Boulevard – 0.30 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

June 1, 2015 
Page 3 

construct, install or otherwise place or remove improvements within said easements. Further, 
nothing herein shall be construed as preventing the city from removing or replacing said 
improvements at the discretion of the city, with or without notice, nor requiring the city to pay 
any compensation for the improvements therein.”  
 
 

The applicant is seeking a variance to the 10 drainage and wall easement to allow the existing 
single-family home to remain 2 feet inside the easement and to allow the existing brick pavers to 
remain over the entire remaining easement.   
 
CODE REQUIREMENTS / CRITERIA 
Section 118-131 of the City Code that relates to the review criteria states that, “A variance may 
be granted from land development regulations by the planning and zoning board if the planning 
and zoning board concludes that literal enforcement of the provisions of land development 
regulations would result in either practical difficulties (for setback and parking provisions) or 
unnecessary hardships (for all other land development regulations) for the property at issue.”  
The code also lists the following criteria that are to be addressed before a variance can be 
approved. Underlined text is Staff’s comments concerning this particular petition. 
 
(1) Granting the variance will not cause or allow interference with the reasonable enjoyment of 

adjacent or nearby property owners or negatively impact the standard of living of the citizens 
of the city; 
The existing single-family residence has been occupied and located on this property since 
July 2014 without any negative impact or interference with the reasonable enjoyment of 
adjacent or nearby property owners.  This home will not negatively impact the standard of 
living of the citizens of the City.  

 
(2) The variance will allow a reasonable use of the property, which use is not out of character 

with other properties in the same zoning category; 
The requested variance allowing the house to remain 2 feet inside the 10 foot easement and 
the brick pavers over the remaining easement will allow reasonable use of the property.  
Furthermore, granting this variance will not change the character of the neighborhood.   

 
(3) In the context presented, strict compliance with the land development regulation will not 

further any legitimate city objective or the benefits that would be achieved under the other 
variance criteria by the granting of the variance outweigh the benefits under this criteria if 
the variance were denied; 
Strict compliance with the City’s land development regulations will not further any 
legitimate City objective.  This request does encroach into a recorded easement, but does not 
exceed the maximum impervious surface allowed for PUD zoned properties (65%), and 
meets all other development regulations of Johns Lake Pointe’s PUD zoning.   

 
(4) The granting of the variance is consistent with the city's comprehensive plan; and 

The variance is consistent with the provisions of the City’s Comprehensive Plan relating to 
low density residential neighborhood character. 

 
(5) The variance requested is the minimum variance that will make reasonable use of the land, 

building, or structure or the benefits that would be achieved under the other variance criteria 
by the granting of the variance outweigh the benefits under these criteria if the variance were 



15344 Johns Lake Pointe Boulevard – 0.30 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

June 1, 2015 
Page 4 

denied. 
The variance requested is the minimum variance that will make reasonable use of the land 
and the location of the house does not negatively impact the neighbors.  Denying this 
variance does not benefit the property owner or the City. 

 
 

SUMMARY 
City Staff recommends approval of a variance to Section 110-203(d) to allow the existing house 
to remain 2 feet inside the 10 foot drainage and wall easement and to allow the brick pavers over 
the remaining easement area subject to the following condition: 
 

1. Should the structure be removed or destroyed, any new structure must comply with the 
original 10 foot drainage and wall easement. 

 
NEXT STEP  
Follow all City regulations and apply for a building permit for the brick pavers. 

 
ATTACHMENTS  

- Aerial Photo 
- Site Plan 
- Site Photos 

 



15344 Johns Lake Pointe Boulevard – 0.30 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

June 1, 2015 
Page 5 

 
AERIAL PHOTO 

15344 Johns Lake Pointe Boulevard 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



15344 Johns Lake Pointe Boulevard – 0.30 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

June 1, 2015 
Page 6 

SITE PLAN 
15344 Johns Lake Pointe Boulevard 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Area with Brick Pavers 



15344 Johns Lake Pointe Boulevard – 0.30 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

June 1, 2015 
Page 7 

SITE PHOTOS 
15344 Johns Lake Pointe Boulevard 

 
Looking south at back yard.  

 

 
 

Looking north at back yard. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



15344 Johns Lake Pointe Boulevard – 0.30 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

June 1, 2015 
Page 8 

SITE PHOTOS 
15344 Johns Lake Pointe Boulevard 

 
Looking west from south side of house. 

 
 

 
 
 

END OF STAFF REPORT 



THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

ITEM # 11 (Public Hearing) 
 

 
DATE:  May 29, 2015 MEETING DATE: June 1, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: 628 Dharma Circle (VARIANCE) 
 PROJECT NAME 628 Dharma Circle, Nguyen Residence 
 PARCEL ID# 26-22-27-1988-00-100 
  
ISSUE: The applicant is requesting a Variance Permit to allow a screen room with 

aluminum roof structure to be placed on the rear of the residence at a 10 
foot setback in lieu of the required 20 foot setback.  

  
SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL/ANALYSIS: 
  
OWNER/APPLICANT: David Nguyen 
  
CURRENT ZONING: PUD (Ord. 98-22) 
  
PROPOSED ZONING: N/A 
  
CURRENT FLU: Low Density Residential  
  
PROPOSED FLU: N/A 
  
  
SUMMARY: 
 The subject property consists of a 0.175 ± acre lot located at 628 

Dharma Circle within the Daniels Crossing Subdivision (Phase 3).  
The applicant is requesting a variance permit to allow a solid 
aluminum roof screen structure in the rear of the home.  The 
variance is for the attached screen structure to the principal 
building exceeding allowed rear setbacks (See attached Staff 
Report). 

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  
  

Staff recommends approval of the rear yard setback variance with 
the conditions outlined in the Staff Report 

  
NEXT STEP(S):  
 Apply for a building permit to proceed with construction of the 

structure. 
  
ATTACHMENT(S):  
 Location Map 
 Staff Report 
 

http://www.ocpafl.org/searches/ParcelSearch.aspx?pid=272226198800100


LOCATION MAP 
 

628 Dharma Circle 
 

VARIANCE 
 
 
 

 



CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION 

300 West Plant Street - Winter Garden, Florida 34787-3011 ● (407) 656-4111 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:  PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
PREPARED BY:  JESSICA FRYE, PLANNER I 
DATE:  MAY 29, 2015 
SUBJECT:  VARIANCE 
   628 DHARMA CIRCLE  (0.175  +/- ACRES) 
   PARCEL ID # 26-22-27-1988-00-100 
 
 APPLICANT:  DAVID NGUYEN 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The purpose of this report is to evaluate the request for a rear yard setback variance for the 
property located at 628 Dharma Circle in Winter Garden, Florida. The request is for a 10’ rear 
yard setback in lieu of the minimum required 20’ rear yard setback.  If approved, this variance 
will allow the construction of a screen room with a solid aluminum roof patio.  
The subject property, located on Dharma Circle, is approximately 0.175 ± acre lot in the Daniels 
Crossing Subdivision (Phase III). The map below depicts the location of the subject property 
within the City of Winter Garden municipal limits:  

 



628 Dharma Circle – 0.175 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

May 29, 2015 
Page 2 

The subject property carries the zoning designation PUD (Ord. 98-22) and is designated LR 
(Low Density Residential) on the Future Land Use Map of the City’s Comprehensive Plan.  
 
EXISTING USE 
The subject property is currently developed with a single family residence.  
 
ADJACENT LAND USE AND ZONING 
The properties immediately adjacent to the subject property are zoned PUD (ord. 98-22) within 
the Danials Crossing Subdivision and are within the City of Winter Garden Municipal limits.  
 
PROPOSED PROJECT 
The applicant is proposing to build a new screen room with a solid aluminum roof over an 
existing concrete slab.  The addition will be approximately 300 square feet.   
 
CODE REFERENCE 
Ordinance 98-22. of the approved Planned Unit Development Ordinace addresses rear setbacks 
as 20’.   
 
The applicant is seeking a variance to the minimum required rear yard setback of approximately 
20’ to allow an addition to the home to be located approximately 10’ from the rear property.  
  
CODE REQUIREMENTS / CRITERIA 
Section 118-131 of the City Code that relates to the review criteria states that, “A variance may 
be granted from land development regulations by the planning and zoning board if the planning 
and zoning board concludes that literal enforcement of the provisions of land development 
regulations would result in either practical difficulties (for setback and parking provisions) or 
unnecessary hardships (for all other land development regulations) for the property at issue.”  
The code also lists the following criteria that are to be addressed before a variance can be 
approved. Underlined text is Staff’s comments concerning this particular petition. 
 
(1) Granting the variance will not cause or allow interference with the reasonable enjoyment of 

adjacent or nearby property owners or negatively impact the standard of living of the citizens 
of the city; 
The proposed screen room with a solid aluminum roof over an existing concrete slab 10’  
from the rear property line should not negatively impact or interfere with the reasonable 
enjoyment of adjacent or nearby property owners. Several of the properties within the 
adjacent neighborhood as well as other older neighborhoods throughout the City feature 
structures that exceed the rear yard setbacks permitted in the PUD zoning districts. Several 
properties within the Daniels Crossing Subdivision (Phase III)  have solid roof structures in 
the rear of their property that encrotches the 20’ setback. The property located south of the 
subject property at 534 Dharma Circle was approved for a variance in 2002 and features a 
home with a solid roof structure that was built within 4’ of the rear property line.  The 
property located at 574 Karma Avenue was approved for a rear setback variance in 2004.  
The addition was also approved by the Daniels Crossing Homeowners Association.  In 
addition, this project will not negatively impact the standard of living of the citizens of the 



628 Dharma Circle – 0.175 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

May 29, 2015 
Page 3 

City.  
 
(2) The variance will allow a reasonable use of the property, which use is not out of character 

with other properties in the same zoning category; 
The requested variance allowing a 10’ rear yard setback in lieu of the minimum required 20’ 
rear yard setback to construct a screen room with a solid aluminum roof will allow 
reasonable use of the property. The proposed structure will help the resident fully enjoy the 
rear of the property and will also help with the aesthetics of the property.  Furthermore, 
granting this variance will not change the low density residential character of the 
neighborhood.   

 
(3) In the context presented, strict compliance with the land development regulation will not 

further any legitimate city objective or the benefits that would be achieved under the other 
variance criteria by the granting of the variance outweigh the benefits under this criteria if 
the variance were denied; 
Strict compliance with the City’s land development regulations will not further any 
legitimate City objective.  This request does not encroach into any recorded easements, does 
not exceed the maximum impervious surface allowed for  the PUD zoned properties (65%), 
and meets all other development regulations of the Winter Garden Code of Ordinances.  

 
(4) The granting of the variance is consistent with the city's comprehensive plan; and 

The variance is consistent with the provisions of the City’s Comprehensive Plan relating to 
low density residential neighborhood character. 

 
(5) The variance requested is the minimum variance that will make reasonable use of the land, 

building, or structure or the benefits that would be achieved under the other variance criteria 
by the granting of the variance outweigh the benefits under these criteria if the variance were 
denied. 
The variance requested is the minimum variance that will make reasonable use of the land.  
The proposed screen room with solid aluminum roof will not negatively impact the neighbors 
and is consistent with rear yard setbacks enjoyed by many other property owners throughout 
the City. Denying this variance does not benefit the property owner or the City. 

 
 

SUMMARY 
Staff recommends approval of the variance to the PUD (ord. 98-22) to allow a screen room 
addition to be built at a 10’ rear yard setback in lieu of the minimum required 20’ rear yard 
setback with the following condition: 

1. The room cannot be fully enclosed or become an air conditioned space. 
 

NEXT STEP  
Obtain building permits while following all City of Winter Garden development regulations.  

 

ATTACHMENTS  
- Aerial Photo 
- Proposed Site Plan 
- Site Photos 



628 Dharma Circle – 0.175 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

May 29, 2015 
Page 4 

 
AERIAL PHOTO 
628 Dharma Circle 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

PROPOSED SITE PLAN 
628 Dharma Circle 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

534 Dharma Circle 
Rear SetbackVarience 

628 Dharma Circle 
Subject Property 

Subject Property 
 
Properties with  rear  
solid roof structures 

Legend 

574 Karma Ave. 
Rear Setback Varience 



628 Dharma Circle – 0.175 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

May 29, 2015 
Page 5 

SITE PLAN 
628 Dharma Circle 

 
 
 
 
 
 



628 Dharma Circle – 0.175 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

May 29, 2015 
Page 6 

SITE PHOTOS 
628 Dharma Circle 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
  



628 Dharma Circle – 0.175 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

May 29, 2015 
Page 7 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

END OF STAFF REPORT 
 
 
 


	2015-06-01 PZ Agenda
	2015-05-04 PZ Minutes DRAFT
	Item # 5
	Item # 5
	161 S Boyd  Street - P & Z Cover Memo
	THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN
	PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM

	LOCATION MAP
	Boyd Street S - 161(Rezoning) Staff Report

	Boyd Street S - 161 Ordinance 15-52 Rezone C-1

	Item # 6
	Oxford Chase Pre-Plat P & Z Cover Memo
	THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN
	PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM

	LOCATION MAP
	Oxford Chase (Pre-Plat) Staff Report
	Oxford Chase - Prel Plat - Complete
	01-13019-Cover-01
	02-13019-Notes-02
	03-13019-Boundary-03
	04-13019-Boundary-04
	05-13019-Boundary-05
	06-13019-Boundary-06
	07-13019-Aerial-07
	08-13019-Oall-08
	09-13019-Siteplan-09
	10-13019-Siteplan-10
	10A-13019-Recplan-10A
	2015.115_Mattamy Oxford Chase_PSP submittal #2_2015-05-06 1
	2015.115_Mattamy Oxford Chase_PSP submittal #2_2015-05-06 2
	2015.115_Mattamy Oxford Chase_PSP submittal #2_2015-05-06 3
	2015.115_Mattamy Oxford Chase_PSP submittal #2_2015-05-06 4
	2015.115_Mattamy Oxford Chase_PSP submittal #2_2015-05-06 5
	2015.115_Mattamy Oxford Chase_PSP submittal #2_2015-05-06 6
	2015.115_Mattamy Oxford Chase_PSP submittal #2_2015-05-06 7
	2015.115_Mattamy Oxford Chase_PSP submittal #2_2015-05-06 8
	2015.115_Mattamy Oxford Chase_PSP submittal #2_2015-05-06 9
	2015.115_Mattamy Oxford Chase_PSP submittal #2_2015-05-06 10


	Item # 7
	Daniels Road -3107 STE 102 (Verizon Wireless SEP)- P & Z Cover Memo
	THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN
	PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM

	LOCATION MAP
	Daniels Road -3107 STE 102 (Verizon Wireless SEP)- P&Z STAFF REPORT

	Item # 8
	Daniels Road 1450 (Harvest of Hope) - P&Z Cover Page
	THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN
	PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM

	LOCATION MAP
	Daniels Road -1450 (Harvest of Hope Greenhouse SEP)- P&Z STAFF REPORT

	Item # 9
	Colonial Drive W - 12801 (Auto Sales & Service Facility SEP) P & Z Cover Memo - 6-1-15
	THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN
	PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM

	LOCATION MAP

	Item # 10
	P & Z Cover Memo -15344 Johns Lake Pointe Blvd
	THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN
	PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM

	LOCATION MAP
	Johns Lake Pointe BLVD - 15344 - Variance P&Z Staff Report
	CODE REFERENCE
	Sec. 110-203(d) of the City Code of Ordinances addresses easements requirements. This section states, “Use within easements. Subject to applicable provisions of the code, upon written approval of the city planner and the execution of an approved relea...
	The applicant is seeking a variance to the 10 drainage and wall easement to allow the existing single-family home to remain 2 feet inside the easement and to allow the existing brick pavers to remain over the entire remaining easement.
	CODE REQUIREMENTS / CRITERIA


	Item # 11
	P & Z Cover Memo_Nguyen Variance
	THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN
	PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM

	628 Dharma Circle Location Map
	628 Dharma Circle - Variance P&Z Staff Report
	CODE REFERENCE
	Ordinance 98-22. of the approved Planned Unit Development Ordinace addresses rear setbacks as 20’.
	The applicant is seeking a variance to the minimum required rear yard setback of approximately 20’ to allow an addition to the home to be located approximately 10’ from the rear property.
	CODE REQUIREMENTS / CRITERIA





